
work session

Charlotte-Mecklenburg
Government Center

Room 267
Noon

omm�ion
lanningC

a City-County 
agency providing public Planning 

Services to the City � Charl�e and
the unincorporated areas �

Mecklenburg County

April 5, 2010



work session

Agenda



CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, APRIL 5, 2010 

CONFERENCE ROOM 267 - NOON 

 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER & INTRODUCTIONS Stephen Rosenburgh 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION 
Approval of Planning Commission Minutes     Attachment 1 

Approve the March 1, 2010 Work Session Minutes  

 

Rules of Procedure      Attachment 2 

Background:  The Executive Committee asked staff to draft language to formalize the 

process for selecting alternates when a committee does not have a quorum. 

Action: The Chairman will present recommendations and Commission will vote on 

language to amend the Rules of Procedure for selecting alternates for committee 

meetings.  

  

INFORMATION 

Planning Director’s Extended Report Debra Campbell 

 

Planning Legislation 

Background:  Terrie Hagler-Gray (City Attorney’s Office) to present information 

regarding recently enacted planning legislation.  

Action:  Receive as information.  

 

Zoning Ordinance Reorganization  

Background:  Sandy Montgomery and Shannon Frye will update the Planning 

Commission on the Zoning Ordinance Reorganization project.  

Action: Receive as information.  

 

Residential Design Standards           

Background:   John Howard will provide an update on the Residential Design Standards 

text amendment process.  

Action:  Receive as information.  

 

April/May 2010 Meeting Schedules          Attachment 3 

Planning Department’s Public Outreach Presentations Attachment 4 

 

Committee Reports 

Executive Committee Stephen Rosenburgh 

 February 15, 2010  Approved Minutes Attachment 5 

 

 Future Agenda Items 

- Slate of Officers (May) 

- HIRD Text Amendment (May/June) 

- Elections of FY2011 Officers (June) 

- CATS Quarterly Update (July) 



 
Work Session Agenda  2 

April 5, 2010 

 

- Planning Director’s Extended Report (July)  

- Capital Improvement Plan (Fall 2010) 

 

Zoning Committee Stephen Rosenburgh 

 Public Hearings  Attachment 6 

 Zoning Committee Agenda Attachment 7 

 

Planning Committee Yolanda Johnson 

 February 16, 2010  Approved Minutes  Attachment 8 

 

Historic District Commission Lucia Griffith 

 March 10, 2010 Meeting Update Attachment 9 

     

Communication from Chairperson Stephen Rosenburgh 

 Nominating Committee Assignments 

 

Tree Ordinance Cost Benefit Report Attachment 10 

  



work session

Administration



  Attachment 1   

  D R A F T 

     

CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION  

MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2010  

CONFERENCE ROOM 267 – 12:00 NOON 

MINUTES 

 

Commissioners Present:  Stephen Rosenburgh (Chairperson), Yolanda Johnson (Vice-

Chairperson), Emma Allen, Claire Green Fallon, Tracy Finch-Dodson, Steven Firestone, Lucia 

Griffith, Nina Lipton,  Eric Locher, Greg Phipps, Joel Randolph, Wesley Simmons, Dwayne 

Walker, and Andy Zoutewelle  

 

Commissioners Absent:  None 

 

Planning Staff Present:   Debra Campbell (Planning Director), Zenia Duhaney, Garet Johnson, 

Laura Harmon, Tim Manes, Cheryl Neely, Shad Spencer, and Katrina Young  

 

Guest:   David Weekly (City Engineering), Tom Johnson (City Engineering) 

 

Call to Order 

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 12:07 p.m. 

 

Approval of February 1, 2010 Work Session Minutes 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Simmons to approve the 

February 1, 2010 work session minutes.  The vote was 14-0 to approve.  

 

POLICY 

Tree Ordinance Update 

Tom Johnson updated the Planning Commission on the proposed administrative and technical 

revisions to the Tree Ordinance.  He provided a brief history and explained that City Councils’ 

goal is to grow and protect the tree canopy in Charlotte.   

 

The first Commercial Tree Ordinance was adopted in 1978 with adoption of the single family 

portion of the ordinance in 2002.  The Tree Ordinance has evolved over the years with several 

updates occurring to the Commercial side.  In 2005 the Tree Commission initiated a revision to 

the ordinance and in December of 2005 formed a stakeholder group.  Throughout two years of 

meetings, a consensus on thirteen proposed technical and administrative revisions was reached.  

 

City of Charlotte Tree Ordinance (Chapter 21) – Proposed Technical Revisions:  

1. Require a 15% minimum percent tree save in commercial development. Currently, the Tree 

Ordinance requires tree preservation of trees 8” in diameter and larger in the front building 

setback of a commercial property.  Many factors affect these trees during not only 

construction, but also years after the projects are completed.  A proposed tree save area could 

be anywhere onsite including where other buffers or open space is required.  

2. Increase number of trees in parking lots or increase growing space for trees.  Shade is 

important in parking lots to reduce the urban heat island effect.  

3. Ensure that tree save/tree protection areas are free of invasive species.  This protects from 

impacts of invasive plants.  



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  2 

4. Require specific distance between trees and site lighting for long-term growth and public 

safety.  Ensuring both survivability of trees and lighting for safety.  

5. Require 50% of new trees to be native species and specify diversity within guidelines 

document.  

6. Create minimum distance between tree save areas and building envelopes to ensure trees can 

be preserved during construction.  Tree save is allowed within single family home lots and 

can create conflicts if it is too close to the building footprint. 

7. Allow tractor-trailer and bus parking lots to plant trees around perimeter of parking lots.  

This measure will resolve conflicts between larger vehicles and landscaped areas.  

 

Proposed Administrative Changes: 

1. Define distance from utility rights of way and construction easements to tree save areas to 

prevent protected trees from being removed by utility companies after plan approval.  

2. Define activities allowed in tree save areas such as installation of paths, removal of dead 

trees and invasive species.  Currently those areas are off limits, and guidance is needed.  

3. Specify the triggers for compliance to clarify when requirements must be met.  

4. Amend penalties section of ordinance to include single family property because this was 

overlooked with the last revision in 2002. 

5. Include incentive limits for single family development in section 21-93 for clarification so 

designers don’t have to refer to another document for the details.  

6. Require field verification of tree save areas less that 30 ft in width on first submittal to allow 

staff ability to inspect sites to ensure trees within tree save areas can be expected to survive. 

 

Mr. Johnson explained that review of the Tree Ordinance was placed on hold for approximately 

one year and was revisited in September of 2008.  The stakeholder group met with the 

Environment Committee in February of 2009 and was asked by the committee to produce a cost 

benefit study for the proposed revisions.  Currently the stakeholders are looking at those findings 

and making necessary changes to the proposed revisions. 

 

The two most important items determined by the cost benefits study that will affect the manner 

in which Charlotte develops includes the 15% minimum tree save in commercial development 

and having an increase in parking lot trees.  The Commercial Tree Ordinance requires 

preservation for trees that are 8 inches in diameter and larger in the front building setback of a 

commercial property.  The intent of the proposed ordinance is to allow tree preservation on 

commercial sites to be anywhere on the site.  In addition, to prevent conflicts with trees, utilities, 

driveways, etc., the plan is to allow the designers/developers to determine where tree save areas 

would be better suited on a site.  This allows for flexibility in the site design and the preservation 

of trees in commercial areas.   

 

Commissioner Zoutewelle stated that it appears that the original provisions were designed to 

provide a tree canopy along roadways.  He noted that it appears that the aim is to provide tree 

preservation rather than creating green space along the street frontage.  Mr. Johnson responded 

that in order to protect the trees, it is easier to move them elsewhere on the parcel, and define the 

utilities right of way.  However, perimeter-planting requirements would still apply.   

Another facet of the revisions that will have a cost bearing on development is the increase in the 

number of trees in parking lots.  Currently, the ordinance requires planting approved trees within 

60 feet of every parking space.  The aim is to promote shade in parking lots and to reduce the 



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  3 

urban heat island effect.  The change will be from 60 to 40 feet, which will place a tree within 40 

feet of every parking space.  He also noted that the revisions include protecting trees from the 

impact of invasive plants.  Mr. Johnson continued by explaining that we want to ensure that we 

are saving trees that are worth saving.  To promote long-term growth and public safety we are 

requiring a specific distance between trees.  This ensures both survivability of trees and lighting 

for safety.  There will be a 50% requirement for all trees planted to be of a native species.  This 

will prevent destruction of trees by a specific disease.  A minimum distance between the tree 

save areas and building envelopes will exist to ensure trees are preserved during construction.  In 

addition, the revisions will allow tractor-trailer and bus parking lots to have trees planted around 

the perimeter of their parking lots.  This measure will resolve the conflicts between large 

vehicles and landscaped areas.    

 

Mr. Johnson noted that the six proposed administrative changes do not necessarily reflect a 

change in our policy or philosophy.  Chairperson Rosenburgh asked, as it relates to parking lots, 

what the average width of the tree canopy is after 20 years.  Mr. Johnson replied that it is 40 feet.  

He stated that the reason for the 40-foot planting space requirement on perimeter trees is to allow 

for the trees to form a canopy when they mature.   

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh noted that parking lots with trees are far more aesthetically pleasing 

than parking lots without trees.  He asked if the desired effect is to have a complete canopy over 

the parking lot.  Mr. Johnson responded that the intent is to shade the parking lot.   

 

The Chairperson asked what is the total cost incurred to maintain trees that have a 40-foot wide 

crown and how often are the trees trimmed?  Mr. Johnson responded that from an ordinance 

perspective there is no mandate on tree trimming.  However, maintenance on the trees should 

occur approximately every seven to ten years.   

 

Commissioner Randolph asked if the 60 to 40 foot requirement applies to all zoning districts or 

is it specifically related to retail or office districts.  Mr. Johnson responded that the requirements 

apply to all commercial districts.   

 

Commissioner Randolph also asked if the renovation additions to facilities are grandfathered or 

does the developer have to go back and cut up some parking lots.  Mr. Johnson responded that 

this is one of the proposed administrative changes to the ordinance.  Currently, the policy states 

that if a site plan has nine parking spaces added to the parking lot then the parking lot will have 

to comply with the tree ordinance.  Commissioner Randolph asked if this covers the total parking 

lot.  Mr. Johnson responded yes.  The Chairperson asked would you add nine or would the total 

become nine.  Mr. Johnson explained if there are thirty designated parking spaces and nine are 

added then it becomes necessary to show that the site complies with the tree ordinance.   

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh asked if the parking area would have to be reconstructed.  Mr. Johnson 

noted that all sites by nature are different and that it is possible that the parking area will need to 

be reconstructed.  

 

Commissioner Randolph asked about the logic behind adding parking spaces.  He stated that it 

seems that the requirements are a bit challenging especially when there are additions.  

Commissioner Randolph stated that even when the requirements went to 60 feet it created some 



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  4 

challenges.  Mr. Johnson responded that the goal of the ordinance is to counter the realization 

that we are losing tree canopy faster than we are replacing it and we need to put measures in 

place to put trees in areas that do not have them.   

 

Commissioner Randolph noted that it appears that they are being creative and allowing options 

for tree save, instead of forcing placement in the setback.  It is a great point because some of the 

larger oaks can be saved.  In the past, to save one foot per oak the trees were removed.  He 

suggested that staff fly over surrounding counties to view their tree canopy.  Mr. Johnson 

responded that the findings from aerial photos would be available in a month that would address 

this issue.   

 

Commissioner Fallon asked how would the findings change what is in place.  Will sidewalk 

installation impact this?  Mr. Johnson replied that city staff often meander sidewalks to avoid 

trees during construction.   

 

The Chairperson asked what is staff’s view about planting trees where there are none?  Mr. 

Johnson noted that if a commercial site only has 10% of trees; the City would plant additional 

trees to increase the site to a minimum of 15% of trees.  Chairperson Rosenburgh stated that 

perhaps we should designate someone to investigate other communities’ tree ordinance 

requirements.  Mr. Johnson replied that staff is currently gathering information on other 

ordinances.  

 

Commissioner Lipton noted that staff has spent four years on this effort.  She asked how 

different is the proposed ordinance from the original vision?  Where are we on the 

recommendations through the three to four year process?  How much of a cost benefit has been 

warranted.  

 

David Weekly clarified that the Tree Ordinance has not undergone a change.  He noted that the 

handout of proposed revisions is the result of recommendations made by the Tree Ordinance 

stakeholder group.  The stakeholder group consists of industry professionals that put together a 

cost-benefit analysis study to determine increased cost to commercial development.  

Commissioner Lipton asked if staff could provide a copy of the cost-benefit analysis study to the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Lipton asked if 15% of MUDD and transit areas are exempt.  Mr. Johnson 

responded yes.  Commissioner Griffith also asked how the City arrived at a 15% minimum tree 

save.  Mr. Johnson responded by aligning the city’s ordinance with other ordinances.  

 

North Tryon Area Plan  

Kent Main presented an overview of the North Tryon Area Plan.  He noted that the area plan’s 

boundaries incorporate North Tryon Street, extending from Brookshire Freeway (I-277), just 

outside of Center City to Sugar Creek Road.  The plan falls within the Corridor section of the 

Centers, Corridors, and Wedges policy framework.  

 

  



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  5 

The North Tryon Study began in 2006 with Phase 1 completed in November 2008.  The purpose 

of the study included the following:  

 

 Development of data on demographics, market trends and land use 

 Development of a new “vision” for North Tryon  

 Identify public sector improvements, actions and funding 

 Leverage private sector reinvestment in the corridor 

 

The internal team included Economic Development, Planning, Charlotte Department of 

Transportation (CDOT) and the Charlotte Area Transportation System (CATS).   

 

One of the principal goals of the plan is to improve the cross-section of North Tryon Street, 

which includes:  

 

 Improved corridor aesthetics – provide a “green element” to the corridor.  

 Create a destination corridor versus a “pass-thru” corridor. 

 Benefits will include all users i.e., motorists, bicyclists, pedestrians, & transit users.  

 Connect both sides of the North Tryon Corridor 

 Create pedestrian refuge opportunities & safety and mobility improvements.  

 

Mr. Main noted that no corrective rezonings are recommended.  He discussed development 

potential as compared to the market forecast.  There is substantially more capacity than projected 

by the market for retail, office, and multi-family uses, which allows existing viable industrial 

users to remain in place for as long as they desire. 
 

Chairperson Rosenburgh asked why the area plan recommends retail development in a linear 

fashion throughout the area plan, given the current economic market and the prediction of a no 

retail forecast.  Mr. Main responded that future retail development would depend on the market 

and the property owner, with other existing uses remaining in place.  Retail might also be 

developed as part of mixed use developments in designated areas.  The intent is that light 

industrial uses abutting residential areas might gradually be replaced with uses that are more 

compatible.  

   

Planning Director Campbell responded that staff does not see the development plans as just 

being linear.  Plans would support clusters as well as linear development and clusters will exist 

among all the uses.  The Director noted that we want to have every opportunity to plan for 

clusters and or the disbursement of development.  Commissioner Griffith agreed and noted that it 

is apparent that there are no clear retail destinations along that corridor.  

 

Commissioner Randolph asked what section of the corridor the North Tryon Streetscape would 

cover.  Mr. Main responded from 30
th

 Street to Dalton Avenue.  He noted that the funds have 

been designated, but are dependent on the upcoming bond package.  The funds for planning have 

been advanced, and work is already underway. 

 

Mr. Main shared that the Planning Committee is expected to make its recommendation on the 

plan on March 16.  The plan will be presented to Council’s Transportation and Planning 



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  6 

Committee in March, with a request to forward it to full Council for public comment.  The final 

Council vote is expected in April.     

 

Parking Standards 
The Chairperson noted that the Vice-Chairperson would lead the follow-up discussion on the 

Zoning Ordinance Parking Standards.   

 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson indicated that the follow-up discussion is to address concerns raised 

by Commissioners from the January Parking Standards presentation made by Laura Harmon.  

 

Commissioner Fallon stated that having the traditional 1.5 parking space requirement for multi-

family units is not enough.  She stated that it appears as though we may be reverting to utilizing 

this requirement.   

 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson responded by asking should the Commission create a task force to 

research outstanding issues raised by the Commission regarding parking standards or should they 

continue to discuss as a full Commission.  Commissioner Zoutewelle added that staff might be 

looking at several types of issues, which may not be necessarily residential.   

 

Planning Director Campbell responded that staff had not been looking at parking standards from 

a viewpoint that a problem exists.  Laura Harmon added that what staff has been working on is a 

holistic approach to updating the Zoning Ordinance.  The aim is to produce a document that is 

more user-friendly and easy to read.  

 

Commissioner Randolph asked if the Commission should look at parking.  He noted that in 1997 

the retail requirements changed, however, he was not sure what brought about the change.   

Director Campbell explained that the parking standards conversation began because of a 

rezoning request for a church expansion.  She explained that what is needed is clarification on 

whether the discussion is about an anomaly of a particular setting or if the discussion involves a 

broader problem with our parking standards.  Staff’s perspective is that they are moving towards 

reducing parking rather than expanding.  The Director explained that she needs the Chairperson 

and Vice Chairperson to identify the problem that the Commission is trying to solve.  

 

Commissioner Lipton stated that she believes that there is an enormous challenge in trying to 

make the community more transit friendly.  The challenge is with institutional uses.  We need to 

find a better way to utilize the land.  The Commission should be committed to looking at this and 

provide some flexibility.  Commissioner Griffith agreed that it makes sense to form a task force.  

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh noted that as parking is reduced the surrounding area would become 

more congested.  

 

Commissioner Simmons asked staff if the trend relates to churches expanding and needing 

additional parking.  He also agreed that perhaps a task force is needed to study the issue.  

Planning Director Campbell responded that the trend seems to be leaning towards the expansion 

of smaller churches that do not have enough land for the intended use.  Therefore, what results is 

removal of structures from properties to build additional parking lots.   

 



   

Planning Commission Work Session March 1, 2010  7 

Commissioner Allen suggested that Commissioners should decide on whether to form a task 

force.  She noted that the issue was too involved to resolve during a work session.   

 

Planning Staff and Commissioners agreed to form a task force.  Vice Chairperson Johnson asked 

Commissioners to volunteer to serve on the sub-committee.  She noted that Commissioners 

should contact either the Vice-Chairperson or the Chairperson if they want to volunteer.   

 

Commissioner Lipton mentioned the discussion regarding overlays from February’s work 

session.  She asked if staff would distribute the overlay information promised at the work 

session.  Cheryl Neely responded that she would contact Laura Harmon and ensure distribution 

of the information.     

 

Planning Director’s Report 

Assistant Director Laura Harmon reported that there would be no Planning Director’s report.  

 

Meeting Schedules  

The Chairperson noted that approved calendars are attached to the work session agenda packet 

for review.  Planning Director Campbell noted that the Executive Committee would meet on 

Thursday, March 18, 2010.  

 

Committee Reports 

Executive Committee  

The Chairperson reported that the approved January Executive Committee minutes are included 

in the agenda packet for review.  

 

Zoning Committee 

Chairperson Rosenburgh noted that Charlotte Housing Authority withdrew the Johnson Road 

rezoning petition.    

 

Planning Committee 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson reported that Kent Main provided an update on the North Tryon Area 

Plan and the Committee would continue discussions regarding the plan process.  

 

Historic District Commission 

Commissioner Griffith reported that Assistant Director Laura Harmon, Historic District Staff, 

Commissioner Lipton, Senior Assistant Attorney Mujeeb Shah-Khan and herself met to address 

concerns about policy guidelines.  She noted that the meeting was productive and that the 

emphasis was on improving communication between staff and neighborhoods within historic 

districts.    

 

Communication from the Chairperson 

Chairperson Rosenburgh stated that there are no changes to the work session future agenda items 

list and reminded Commissioners to submit any potential agenda topics to the Executive 

Committee. 

 

Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 1:27 p.m.  



  Attachment 2 

 

  

 RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

 CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 

ARTICLE I - OFFICERS 
 

Section 1. The officers of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission shall be the 

Chairperson and the Vice Chairperson. 

 

Section 2. For the purpose of Planning Commission business the Chairperson shall 

preside at all meetings, appoint all standing and temporary committees, and shall have the right 

to vote.  The Vice Chairperson shall preside at meetings in the absence of the Chairperson.  In 

the absence of both the Chairperson and the Vice Chairperson the Commission shall select its 

presiding officers from those present. 

 

Section 3.   For the purpose of Planning and Zoning Committee business, the 

Chairperson of the respective Committee shall preside at all meetings, appoint all standing and 

temporary committees, and shall have the right to vote.  The Vice Chairperson shall preside at 

meetings in the absence of the Chairperson.  In the absence of the Chairperson and the Vice 

Chairperson the Commission shall select its presiding officers from those present. 

 

Section 4.   The Chairperson shall distribute the rotation schedule that will take effect in 

July at the April Planning Commission work session. 

 

Section 5.   The officers of the Commission shall be elected for a term of one year.  The 

Chair will appoint a nominating committee by April.  The Nominating Committee will present a 

slate of officers at the May work session.  The definition of slate is one person per office. 

Additional nominations may be made from the floor.  The election of officers will take place at 

the June meeting.  The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson will take office July 1.  

 

Section 6. The Planning and Zoning Committees will elect their Vice-Chairpersons at 

their July committee meeting.   

  

Section 7. In the event the office of Chairperson becomes vacant, the Vice Chairperson 

automatically becomes the Chairperson as of the date of the vacancy.  In the event the office of 

Vice Chairperson becomes vacant, the Planning Commission shall elect a new Vice Chairperson 

from a group consisting of the Committee Vice Chairpersons and any Commissioners nominated 

from the floor.  The vacancy will be announced at the work session following the vacancy.  The 

election shall take place at the work session following the announcement (second work session 

after the vacancy). 

 

Section 8.   In the event of a vacancy for any reason in the position of Vice Chairperson 

of the Planning or Zoning Committee, the respective Committee shall elect a new Vice 

Chairperson from the members of that Committee.  This election shall take place at the next 

work session following the date of the vacancy. 

  



   

 

 2 

ARTICLE II - COMMISSION MEETINGS 
 

Section 1. The regular meeting date of the Commission shall be the first Monday of 

each month.  Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson of the Commission, provided 

that three days' notice may be waived upon the consent of eight Commission members. 

 

Section 2. Eight members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum at any regular 

meeting of the Commission.  Eight members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum at any 

special meeting of the Commission. 

 

Section 3. Members of the Commission shall not commit themselves on any question 

scheduled to be considered by the Commission, prior to a consideration of the matter at a duly 

authorized meeting.  Members shall use discretion in discussing with individuals scheduled 

agenda items which are later to be voted upon by the Commission. 

 

Section 4.   A request by one or more citizens to appear before or present matters to the 

Planning Commission must be submitted in writing to the Chairperson.  This request will contain 

a description of the item to be discussed, the length of time it is estimated it will take to present, 

the names of people who will present the matter and the number of people desiring to attend.  

The Chairperson will present the request to the Executive Committee at its next meeting.  The 

Executive Committee shall decide if the matter will be placed on a future agenda of the Planning 

Commission.  The requesting party will be notified of the action of the Executive Committee.  If 

the matter is approved for placement on the agenda, the requesting party will be given 

information as to when it will be heard and the time allotted for presentation.  If the matter is not 

approved for the agenda they will be informed as to reasons for that action.  No citizen may 

address the Planning Commission on a matter that has been or will be heard in a public hearing 

by either the Zoning Committee or the Planning Committee. 

 

Section 5.   No zoning petition will be reheard at the request of the petitioner or others, 

except a governing body, after a duly authorized public hearing has been conducted where 

petitioners and opponents have had an opportunity to express their views and after a decision has 

been rendered.  After a hearing has been conducted but prior to a decision the Commission may 

agree to receive additional information on its own inquiry. 
 
 

ARTICLE III - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

Section 1.   No member of the Commission shall seek to influence a decision, participate 

in any action or cast a vote involving any matter that is before the Commission which may result 

in a private benefit to themselves, their relatives or their business interest.  In applying this rule 

the following procedure shall govern: 

 

(a) A Commissioner who determines there exists a conflict of interest shall declare the 

existence of a conflict and shall refrain from any deliberation on the matter and 

shall leave any chamber in which such deliberations are to take place.  



   

 

 3 

(b) A Commissioner who believes there may exist a conflict of interest shall declare his 

possible conflict and ask for a determination by the Commission.  A majority vote 

of the Commission shall determine whether or not a conflict of interest exists.   

 

(c) A challenge of the existence of a conflict of interest or a challenge of an 

undisclosed conflict of interest may be filed by any interested party with the 

Commission.  Such a challenge may be an appeal for a review of the finding of the 

Commission or may be for the purpose of alleging an undeclared conflict of 

interest.  Any challenge made to the Commission shall be supported by competent 

evidence and shall be submitted to a properly convened meeting of the 

Commission.  The Commission shall hear all evidence and shall, by majority vote, 

make the final determination as to the existence of a conflict of interest. 

 

(d) Withdrawal from participation in any matter is necessary only in those specific 

cases in which a conflict arises.  There shall be no attempt to exclude entire 

categories of considerations because of the business or profession with which a 

member is associated.  

 

Section 2. Each Commission member shall file a disclosure statement in accordance 

with the following: 

 

(a) The statement shall be filed annually at the regular meeting of the Commission in 

July.  A newly appointed member shall file an initial statement within sixty days of 

the effective date of the appointment and thereafter shall file at the regular annual 

time.  Each statement shall become part of the minutes for the meeting at which it is 

filed.   

 

(b) The disclosure statement shall include the following information for the 

Commission and their immediate household:  (Spouse and dependent children) 

 

(1) A listing of all real property in Mecklenburg County in which there is held 

any legal or beneficial interest including a contract to buy or sell. 

 

(2) The identity, by name and address, of any business entity with which there is 

an association.  For purposes of this code "association" shall mean an owner, 

officer, director or employee of the business entity, or beneficial ownership of 

40% of the voting stock of any corporation. 

 

ARTICLE IV - RECORDS OF COMMISSION BUSINESS 
 

Section 1. The Commission shall keep a record of all business transacted at regular and 

special meetings.  Copy of such Minutes shall be furnished to the Charlotte City Council, 

Mecklenburg County Commissioners, the Mayor and the City Manager.  Such minutes shall be a 

public record filed in the Commission offices and available for inspection. 

 

  



   

 

 4 

ARTICLE V - COMMITTEES 
 

Section 1. There shall be three (3) Standing Committees: 

(a) Planning Committee as provided by the Interlocal Agreement. 

(b) Zoning Committee as provided by the Interlocal Agreement. 

(c) Executive Committee composed of the Planning Commission Chair and Vice Chair 

and the Vice Chairs of the Planning and Zoning Committees.  The Executive 

Committee shall be responsible for coordination of Planning Commission and 

Committee activities and agendas.  Further, the Executive Committee is responsible 

for working with the Director in assuring coordination of staff and Commission 

work. 

 

Section 2. Other Committees or Commission representatives on Committees may be 

appointed as needed to expedite the work and further the aims and objectives of the Commission 

or its Standing Committees. 

 

 Section 3. Commission members are to inform the Chairperson of the respective 

Committee or staff if they are not able to attend any regularly scheduled meeting of the 

Commission.  If staff is notified of the absence, he/she should call the Chairperson of the 

respective Committee to inform them of the absence.  In the event that a quorum is not obtained, 

the Chairperson of the respective Committee will contact their Committee member(s) to inquire 

about their availability to attend the meeting in order to obtain a quorum.   

 

In the event that a quorum cannot be obtained with the assigned Committee members, the 

Chairperson of the Commission retains the authority to make temporary assignments as needed 

as per article 3.74 of the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement.  

 

Section 4. Public Hearings:  In regards to the Planning and Zoning Committee's 

attendance at Public Hearings, it is vitally important for Commissioners to be present and receive 

input from the public regarding the cases before them.  The attendance policy still holds for each 

of these meetings.  However, Public Hearings are not official meetings, and therefore do not 

require a quorum. 

 

It is strongly recommended that absent Commissioners review the video/audio tape of the 

Hearing to insure they are familiar with the current information regarding each case.  In addition, 

per article 3.74 of the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement, the Chairperson retains the authority to 

make temporary assignments. 

   

Section 5. The chair of a Committee has the authority to cancel a meeting in any one of 

the following two circumstances: 

 

(a) A sufficient number of Committee members have informed the chair or staff 

advisor that they will not be able to attend the meeting, such that a quorum cannot 

be obtained.   

 

(b) The agenda is deemed insubstantial, such as the approval of minutes and/or 



   

 

 5 

mandatory referrals for which the timing of the approvals is not critical based upon 

the information available to the Planning staff.  The chair shall inform the 

Committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the chair’s reasons for the 

cancellation of the meeting for an agenda deemed insubstantial. 
 

 

ARTICLE VI - VOTING PROCEDURE FOR ZONING COMMITTEE AND PLANNING 

COMMITTEE  
 

Section 1. If a recommendation to approve or deny does not result in the necessary four 

votes in order to pass that motion, then there will be an automatic "roll over" to the next 

regularly scheduled meeting where such a matter would normally occur. 

 

Section 2. Once the matter is voted upon again and less than four votes again result, 

then the matter shall be forwarded to the elected officials or other appropriate body with no 

recommendation.  The matter shall be a report of the Committee with viewpoints expressing the 

discussion included.   

 

Section 3. In the instance where all 7 committee members are present or otherwise 

accounted for (i.e. conflicts of interest) and a motion receives less than four votes, then the 

matter shall be forwarded as described under #2 above with no roll over delay. 

 

Section 4. In the event a motion fails, (for example 3 to 4) such failure does not 

preclude a subsequent motion which would result in the passage of the motion (for example 4 to 

3). 
 

 

ARTICLE VII - DUTIES OF THE PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

Section 1. The Planning Director shall be responsible for the execution of policies 

established by the Commission, and shall direct the work of the Commission's staff.  He/she shall 

serve as secretary of the Commission and shall be responsible for maintaining records of its 

business, issuing notices of meetings and notifying parties having interest in matters to be 

considered at Commission meetings. 
 

 

ARTICLE VIII – PROCEDURE 
 

Section 1. The Planning Commission may refer to the latest revision of Robert’s Rules 

of Order Newly Revised for guidance on matters of procedure not governed by these Rules or any 

other higher authority in law or regulation. 
 

Section 2. These Rules of Procedure may be amended at any work session by an 

affirmative vote of two-thirds of the serving members of the Planning Commission. 
 

As Revised to March 1, 1999 

       As Revised to January 8, 2001 

       As Revised to December 1, 2003  

       As Revised to March 6, 2006 

       As Revised to November 3, 2008 



work session

Information



  Attachment 3   

 

CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING SCHEDULE 
April 2010 

 

 

DATE TIME PURPOSE PLACE 

 
FULL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

04-05-10 Noon Work Session Conference Room 280 

   2
nd

 Floor – CMGC  

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

04-05-10 2:00 P.M. University Research Park  CMGC-Lobby 

  Area Plan Tour 

 

04-20-10 5:00 P.M. Work Session  Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

ZONING COMMITTEE 

  

04-19-10 5:00 P.M. Dinner with City Council Conference Room CH-14 

   Basement – CMGC 

 

04-19-10 6:00 P.M. City Rezonings Meeting Chamber   

   Lobby Level – CMGC 

 

04-28-10 4:30 P.M.  Zoning Work Session Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

04-19-10  4:00 P.M. Work Session  Conference Room 266 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

OTHER COMMITTEES 

 

04-14-10  3:00 P.M. Historic District Commission Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

 

04-23-10  11:30 A.M.   Planning Coordinating Committee  Mathews Town Hall  

 

 

 



   

 

CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING SCHEDULE 
May 2010 

 

 

DATE TIME PURPOSE PLACE 

 
FULL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

05-03-10 5:00 P.M.  *Work Session Conference Room 280 

   2
nd

 Floor – CMGC 

    

PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

05-18-10 5:00 P.M. Work Session  Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

ZONING COMMITTEE 

  

05-17-10 5:00 P.M. Dinner with City Council Conference Room CH-14 

   Basement – CMGC 

 

05-17-10 6:00 P.M. City Rezonings Meeting Chamber   

   Lobby Level – CMGC 

 

05-26-10 4:30 P.M.  Zoning Work Session Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

05-17-10 4:00 P.M. Work Session  Conference Room 266 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

OTHER COMMITTEES 

 

05-12-10 3:00 P.M. Historic District Commission Conference Room 280 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

05-19-10 7:00 P.M. MUMPO Conference Room 267 

   2nd Floor – CMGC 

 

 

 

* Please note: The May 3, 2010 Planning Commission work session has been rescheduled from Noon to 

   5:00 p.m.  

 

 



Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Department 
FY2010 Community Outreach Presentations

Attachment 4

# Date Presentation Staff

1 01/23/10 District 2 Intelligent Leadership Conference D. Campbell

2 02/01/10
Centers, Corridors & Wedges Growth Framework - General Development Policies & 

the City's Sustainability Policy 
G. Johnson

3 02/02/10 Urban Land Institute Study Panel-Lake Norman Transportation Commission B. Cook

4 02/03/10 Centers, Corridors & Wedges Growth Framework - General Development Policies G. Johnson

5 02/05/10 Eastland Area Strategies Team - Eastland Area Plan Implementation Initiatives K. Main 

6 02/12/10 2020 Plan Workshop City Planning & Building for IB Curriculum D. Campbell

7 02/19/10 2020 Plan Workshop City Planning & Building for IB Curriculum D. Campbell

8 02/20/10 Gaston County Census 2010 Forum D. Campbell

9 02/22/10 Charlotte-Mecklenburg Council on Aging - MUMPO 101 R. Cook 

10 02/26/10 2020 Plan Workshop City Planning & Building for IB Curriculum D. Campbell

11 03/01/10 Wilmore Neighborhood Association - How to become a Local Historic District 
J. Rogers/W. 

Birmingham

12 03/08/10
Centers, Corridors & Wedges & the General Development Policies as part of the City's 

Sustainability Policy
G. Johnson

13 03/10/10 McCrorey YMCA Board of Managers' Retreat D. Campbell

Page 1 of 1



  Attachment 5 
  Approved March 18, 2010 

 

Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

February 15, 2010 – 4:00 p.m.  

Room 266 

 

 

Commissioners Present: Stephen Rosenburgh (Chairperson), Yolanda Johnson (Vice-

Chairperson), Eric Locher and Joel Randolph 

 

Commissioners Absent:  None 

 

Planning Staff Present: Debra Campbell (Planning Director), Zenia Duhaney, Kent Main, and 

Katrina Young 

 

The meeting was called to order at 4:05 p.m.  

 

Approval of January 19, 2010 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

A motion was made by Commissioner Locher and seconded by Commissioner Randolph to approve 

the January 19, 2010 Executive Committee minutes.  The vote was 4-0 to approve. 

 

Follow-Up Assignments 

Heights in Residential Districts (HIRD) 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson stated that staff would continue to work on the HIRD text amendment.  

Staff will meet with the HIRD stakeholder group and discuss concerns raised by the Planning 

Commission.    

 

Amendment to the Rules of Procedure 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson asked if staff had established a process to meet quorum requirements.  

Planning Director Campbell responded that a formal process has not been established.  She 

explained that the “Interlocal Agreement” and the “Rules of Procedure” do not address having 

alternates fill-in for absent Commissioners.   

 

The Director indicated that staff follows the protocol agreed upon by the Chairperson and staff.  

Staff contacts the Chairperson to determine who will serve as a stand-in when a quorum does not 

exist.  Planning Director Campbell asked the Chairperson if he would like staff to formalize or 

amend this process.  The Chairperson responded that he would like the process formalized.  

 

Commissioner Randolph explained that other communities such as Jacksonville and Richmond 

have policies that support having alternates.  Alternates fill-in for Commissioners who are absent 

from scheduled meetings and are prepared to discuss the issues and or vote.  He noted that it is 

unfair to petitioners and staff when Planning Committee members are asked to fill-in at a meeting 

and are unfamiliar or unprepared with the issues.  Commissioner Randolph recommended creating a 

process that allows alternates to fill-in for absent committee members.  However, he noted that 

adding such a process might change the “Interlocal Agreement”.  

 



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  2 

 

Commissioner Randolph voiced his concern regarding not meeting quorum requirements at the 

Zoning work sessions.  He noted that sometimes committee members do not attend City Council 

hearings and miss the public’s comments or the specifics about the rezoning cases.  Ten days later 

Committee members attend the Zoning work session and may be required to render a decision.  

However, since they have not attended all the meetings they might lack the information necessary 

to make a good decision.  He noted that sometimes the rezoning cases also require a site visit.  

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh agreed and stated that is the reason staff set up a process to contact the 

Chairperson when there is an absence.  He explained that staff had been trying to reduce the number 

of times people call in or state that they will attend a meeting and fail to show up.  Chairperson 

Rosenburgh asked if creating a formal process for alternates requires an administrative process.   

 

Planning Director Campbell replied that the recommendation to document quorum requirements 

would not change the “Interlocal Agreement”, but it would amend the “Rules of Procedure” 

through an administrative process.  

 

The Planning Director asked if the committee’s goal is to have an alternate or standby person attend 

the meetings to become familiar with the issues of a case.  She noted that this recommended process 

would create a workload increase for someone not serving on the Zoning Committee.  

Commissioners on the Planning Committee could possibly end up performing two functions as an 

alternate.    

 

Planning Director Campbell also reminded the committee that zoning public hearings are not 

required meetings for Planning Commission members.  She noted that the public hearings are City 

Council meetings, but Commissioners are strongly encouraged to attend.   

 

Commissioner Randolph stated that maybe staff should reconsider the recommendation.  Vice-

Chairperson Johnson asked, how often committee members are late or absent from zoning 

meetings.  Chairperson Rosenburgh responded that committee members are late or absent on a 

regular basis.  Commissioner Randolph commented that typically staff receives notification of 

absences on the day of the meeting.   

 

The Chairperson stated that he understands the Director's recommendation to document the process.  

Planning Director Campbell explained that staff would draft the language to formalize the process 

and present to the full Commission for action.  The Chairperson asked if the Planning Commission 

should approve changes in process.  The Director responded yes, and restated that the Commission 

can administratively amend the “Rules of Procedure”.  Chairperson Rosenburgh agreed and noted 

that the consensus is to present a motion to the full Commission.   

 

Planning Director Campbell asked if the Chairperson would like this item added to the March 

Planning Commission agenda.  Chairperson Rosenburgh agreed to add if it is doable.  

 

March 1, 2010 Work Session Agenda Items 

Parking Standards Follow-Up Discussion 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson discussed the Parking Standards overview presented by Laura Harmon 

at the January work session.  She asked if this agenda item had been placed on the March 1, 2010 

agenda for a follow-up discussion.   



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  3 

 

 

The Planning Director confirmed that the parking standards follow-up was added to the March 

agenda.  She explained that staff’s intent was to present the standards as information.  However, the 

Commission connected the information presented with issues surrounding institutional uses and 

urban areas.  The Director expressed that staff is concerned with understanding the direction that 

the Commission wants to take.  She noted that staff wants to ensure that they understand the scope 

of the issue and have clear direction in terms of the deliverable. 

  

Chairperson Rosenburgh agreed with the Director’s summary of the issue and asked if further 

clarification is needed.  He explained that he would rather the Executive Committee determine the 

deliverable.  The Chairperson further explained that the Commission is not concerned about 

reviewing all the parking standards.  The review is related to the uses in urban areas that are going 

to expand as the community grows.  He asked how we should deal with parking since it is 

impractical to build parking decks each time a use expands.   

 

The Planning Director responded that the distinction is that Commissioners are talking globally and 

staff is talking standards that are related to and applied based on the district.  She noted that parking 

standards are linked to the zoning district as well as the use.      

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh asked why is staff looking at parking standards citywide.  He questioned 

whether they could be applied by district.  The Planning Director responded that staff is looking at 

parking by district and noted that zoning districts are applied citywide.  

 

Planning Director Campbell noted that staff believes that they are doing a good job as it relates to 

parking standards in urban districts and their uses.  Staff has made some adjustments through the 

floor area ratio and has allowed for further intensification when there is a deck.  She referenced the 

work session minutes from January and noted that staff tried to clarify the intent.  Too much 

emphasis has been placed on the Greater Galilee rezoning.  This was a unique circumstance, but the 

assumption is that all institutional uses are having problems with providing parking.  

 

The Chairperson responded that Commissioners believe that Greater Galilee was the catalyst for the 

discussion.  He noted that in the future, there are going to be many other similar situations to 

Greater Galilee and the Commission is interested in being proactive.  Chairperson Rosenburgh 

noted that the Commission might determine after review of the issues that a change is not needed.   

 

The Planning Director noted that the emphasis is on institutional uses.  Commissioner Randolph 

agreed and stated that he believes that the issues are broader.  Vice-chairperson Johnson noted that 

this is what Commissioner Griffith referred to when she noted that the uses go beyond churches.  

She noted that there are leniencies given to the churches that are not occurring across the board.  

The Vice-Chairperson agreed that there is a need to examine all uses, not just churches.  

 

The Planning Director suggested that the issue should be taken back to the full Commission to 

make sure that their expectations can be met.  The Chairperson responded that it appears that staff 

believes the parking standards for this issue is adequate.  The Director noted that staff has addressed 

institutional uses across the board.  A change across districts would require more time, additional 

analysis, as well as discussions with community groups and business organizations.  

 



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  4 

 

Chairperson Rosenburgh responded that the Commission is not implying that the standards are 

incorrect.  After additional review, staff might come back and agree that the standards should be 

changed.  The Commission wants staff to review the standards because there will be more of these 

types of rezonings in the future.  He noted that this issue appears to cause strife between the 

community and petitioners.  The Planning Director agreed and stated that there is a 

misunderstanding regarding which direction to take.   

 

The Chairperson reiterated that there has been concern regarding parking.  When you have an 

existing use, whether it is a church, school or community hall that is expanding there is going to be 

friction with surrounding neighbors.  People should not be forced to build parking decks.  It is not 

practical.  Yet, we know that our institutions in urban settings will continue to expand because we 

are a growing community.  Chairperson Rosenburgh asked if there are policies in place to deal with 

these types of development.    

 

The Director responded by suggesting that the friction is the expansion of the use, not in the 

standard.  Chairperson Rosenburgh agreed and suggested that staff review the issue.  He suggested 

that staff turn in a report that states that they have looked at the issue and determined that it is 

adequate.  The Chairperson noted that staff could provide a recommendation as to how to deal with 

it in the future.   

 

Commissioner Randolph referenced the “by right “institutional parking space requirement of one 

space for every three seats.  He asked who creates the criteria.  The Planning Director responded 

that the criterion is established in the Zoning Ordinance.  Commissioner Randolph noted that 

CDOT allows on-street parking on Providence Road and on neighborhood streets on Sundays.  He 

stated that they are creating spaces to park and the concern is as places expand will they be able to 

obtain the needed parking spaces.  For example, you cannot park on West Boulevard because there 

are only two lanes and it is not a major thoroughfare like Providence Road.  It seems to be a bit 

complicated and challenging for a church to pursue parking.  He noted that he also believes the 

standards have been lenient for churches.  They have a need one day a week for two hours and then 

the problem goes away.  

 

The Planning Director commented that is the reason that she is extremely concerned about revising 

the Zoning Ordinance to respond to a one day a week occurrence.  She stated that the zoning 

language and the ordinances deal with the predominant use of a facility.  She noted that the seating 

capacity in the ordinance for churches is one space for every four seats.  

 

Commissioner Randolph stated that regardless of the minimum standards are more parking spaces 

are added than needed.  The Planning Director agreed and noted that developers always plan for 

over parking not under parking.  They never meet just the minimum requirements.   

 

Commissioner Locher noted that it is cheaper to do it that way and that he agrees with the 

standards.  However, he noted that the Chairperson wants us to review the standards and determine 

if they are adequate.  He noted that Myers Park Presbyterian had to work hard to obtain parking 

when they expanded to build a gymnasium.   

 



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  5 

 

The Director responded that there are numerous public uses not just churches and that is why it is 

tremendously difficult to demonstrate adequacy because there are many different types of 

institutional uses.   

 

The Chairperson asked if the use is the same as a Church or a school or a community theater.  The 

Planning Director responded that schools do not generate parking.  They have a drop off for kids 

and there is plenty of parking for school buses.  She noted that bus parking is centralized and 

disbursed and buses do not necessarily park on school property any longer.     

 

The Chairperson referenced the Episcopal school on Park Road.  He noted that when there is a 

football game or a teacher’s night there are cars parked everywhere on the boulevard and up and 

down the street.  The Planning Director responded that those are special events and stated that it is 

the same way for the football stadium.  We could never have adequate parking for those kinds of 

events.  The Director noted that we do not want to encourage everybody to drive and make it easy 

for them to park.  Chairperson Rosenburgh responded that we are not trying to make it easy on 

anybody.  All we are looking at is what the standards are and how can we make it work.  The 

Planning Director stated that we have already completed that process.  We provided the 

Commission with a presentation, summarized the main points, and stated what we believe to be 

okay.  She asked what the Commission would like staff to do.  

 

Chairperson asked if there is a communication issue.  Commissioner Randolph responded that there 

is a difference of opinion.  Chairperson Rosenburgh explained that there was a full Commission 

meeting and Commissioners determined that they are interested at looking at this subject.  

Commissioner Randolph stated that he believes that staff has been creative as it relates to the transit 

lines and TOD.  He noted that the issue is now outside of the transit line.   

 

The Director reiterated that she wanted to understand the specific assignment.  The Chairperson 

responded that the Commission would provide a written assignment to be crafted by the Executive 

Committee.  He asked Vice-Chairperson Johnson to develop the draft.  

 

Commissioner Locher asked if the intent applies to Center City or if it is particularly related to 

residential areas.  He noted that it seems to be primarily linked to institutional uses in residential 

areas and primarily churches.  The Chairperson responded that it will involve more than churches, 

but suggested that once the document is drafted it will address the issue.   

 

North Tryon Area Plan  

Vice-Chairperson Johnson noted that the Planning Committee meeting would receive public 

comments on the North Tryon Area Plan at their next meeting.  Kent Main will provide a five-

minute overview of the area plan to the full Commission at their next meeting.  Mr. Main reported 

that an update would be provided to Council’s Transportation and Planning Committee and City 

Council will also receive public comments in March.   

 

Tree Ordinance Update  

The Planning Director reported that Council would have their regular workshop on March 1, 2010.  

Staff will update Council on the Urban Street Design Guidelines, the Post Construction Ordinance 

and provide the Tree Ordinance update.  

 



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  6 

 

The Director noted that staff is working with Urban Forestry to determine who will present the Tree 

Ordinance update to the full Commission.  Vice-Chairperson Johnson asked if the Commission 

asked for the Tree Ordinance Update.  The Planning Director noted that this agenda item was 

placed on the agenda at the request of the Commission.  She noted that the update should not be 

longer than ten minutes.  

 

Parking Decks as an Accessory Use to Institutional Uses Text Amendment  

The Planning Director explained that the Parking Decks as an Accessory Use to Institutional uses 

text amendment is the floor area ratio standards that would exempt parking decks from being 

counted as it relates to the total floor area ratio for institutional uses, which includes churches, 

colleges, etc.    

 

Commissioner Locher asked if this is part of urbanization where if the spaces are counted as a part 

of the finished area it reduces the space where a piece of property can be placed.  The Planning 

Director responded that the concern is that institutional uses are acquiring a lot of land to expand 

parking lots.  Often times they are penalized on site if they build deck parking.  We do not want to 

penalize anyone for building a parking deck.  They should not be penalized for doing the exact 

thing that we want them to do.  

 

Commissioner Locher noted that deck parking is expensive and it is becoming evident for 

institutions that might want to go in that direction.  The Planning Director agreed and noted 

especially for colleges, universities, and some churches.  

 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson asked if this text amendment is on the fast track or could it be deferred.  

She explained that her concern comes from the manner in which the committee has handled text 

amendments.  She noted that the process should go as usual and asked if City Council is awaiting 

this text amendment, if so they can go ahead and vote and move it along.  Commissioner Randolph 

responded that push back has come from the HIRD text amendment.  He noted that Commissioners 

think that the Executive Committee has been approving text amendments without including input 

from the full Commission.  

 

The Planning Director responded that staff would ask for permission to file at the next work 

session.  She hopes that the filing would not be deferred because there is a sense of urgency and a 

deferral could impact the building permitting process.  Some institutional uses have expansion plans 

that are counting on this text amendment.  

 

Vice-Chairperson Johnson noted that the committee is okay with the agenda items listed on the 

March 1, 2010 work session agenda.  

 

FUTURE AGENDA WORK SESSION ITEMS 

Zoning Ordinance Reorganization 

The Vice-Chairperson asked if there are any changes to the future agenda items list.  She asked 

about the Zoning Ordinance Reorganization.  Planning Director Campbell responded that this topic 

has to do with staff’s goal to reorganize the Zoning Ordinance to make it more user-friendly.  She 

noted that staff is not changing any of the language, other than what has been already approved 

through text amendments.  A few images may be added to clarify existing language because the text 



   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 15, 2010  7 

 

may not be conveying the intent very well.  The Director stated that the future agenda list includes 

topics added by both staff and the Commission.  

 

The Director noted that the Zoning Ordinance needs re-writing and updating.  The last update 

occurred in 1993.  She noted that the standards do not support where we are currently headed.  

 

Residential Design Standards 

The Planning Director explained that the Commission requested an update on the residential design 

standards.  The update will include a status report of the stakeholder process as well as specific 

recommendations.  She noted that the process is near completion and the last stakeholder’s meeting 

is scheduled for March.  

 

The Vice-Chairperson commented that April’s agenda includes several topics for discussion.  She 

asked if the director’s report should be included as a part of the agenda in April.  The Planning 

Director responded that the residential design standards and the Zoning Ordinance reorganization 

updates will be a part of the director’s extended report.   

 

Election of FY2011 Officers 

The Vice-Chairperson mentioned that the Committee should begin looking at agenda topics for 

May and June.  She asked committee members to submit any additions or suggestions.   

Commissioner Locher asked about the elections for FY2011 officers.  He suggested defining the 

process in advance.  The Planning Director asked if the Committee would select the slate of 

candidates in May.  The Director explained that based on the “Rules of Procedure” the nomination 

committee should be selected in April, the slate submitted in May, and elections held in June.  After 

discussion, the committee decided that they would select the slate of candidates in May and have 

elections in June.   

 

Approval of Meeting Schedules 

The Committee approved the March and April 2010 meeting schedules.   

   

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 5:08 p.m.  



  Attachment 6 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON PETITIONS 

FOR ZONING CHANGES BY CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE, N.C. 

NOTICE is hereby given that public hearings will be held by the City Council in the Meeting 
Chamber located in the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center, 600 East Fourth Street 
beginning at 6:00 P.M. on Monday, the 19th day of April, 2010 on the following petitions that 
propose changes to the Official Zoning Maps of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina: 

Petition 2001-099 Establishment of the Historic District Overlay. Underlying zoning will remain 
unchanged. Approximately 171.28 acres east of Interstate 77 bounded by Dunkrik Drive, West 
Tremont Avenue, South Tryon Street, and West Summit Avenue. Petitioner: Wilmore 
Neighborhood Association. 

Petition 2010-009 Change in zoning from R-5 and O-2(CD) to MUDD-O for approximately 6.92 
acres located within Harrill Street, East 16

th
 St, Pegram Street and East 19

th
 Street. Petitioner: 

St. Paul Baptist Church. 
 
Petition 2010-010 NS SPA (site plan amendment) for approximately 6.63 acres located on the 
southwest corner of Rocky River Road and East W.T. Harris Boulevard. Petitioner: Magazine 
Street Interest. 
 
Petition 2010-022 Change in zoning from TOD-M(CD) and R-22MF to TOD-MO and TOD-RO for 
approximately 16.70 acres located at the south corner intersection of South Boulevard and South 
Caldwell Street continuing southeast along Templeton Avenue. Petitioner: Housing Authority 
of the City of Charlotte. 
 
Petition 2010-023 NS SPA and UR-2(CD) SPA (site plan amendment) for approximately 9.06 
acres located on the west corner of Ardrey Kell Road and Marvin Road. Petitioner: RED 
Partners. 
 
Petition 2010-025 Text Amendment- To clarify the yard requirement regulations for corner lots in 
the Zoning Ordinance. Petitioner: Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission. 
 
Petition 2010-027 Change in zoning from B-1(PED) to B-1(PED-O) for approximately 3.92 acres 
bounded by Scott Avenue, East Boulevard, and Floral Avenue. Petitioner: The Carolina Group 
Partner, LLC. 
 
Petition 2010-028 NS SPA, MX-2 SPA, and O-1(CD) SPA (site plan amendment) for 
approximately 80.87 acres located off Cindy Lane continuing southwest to Missionary Avenue 
and Beatties Ford Road. Petitioner: Mecklenburg County Park & Recreation Department. 
 
 
Petition 2010-030 NS SPA (site plan amendment) for approximately 1.11 acres located at the 
northeast corner of Prosperity Church Road and Johnston Oehler Road. Petitioner: Prosperity 
Shopping Plaza, LLC. 
 



  Attachment 6 

The City Council may change the existing zoning classification of the entire area covered by each 
petition, or any part or parts of such area, to the classification requested, or to a higher 
classification or classifications without withdrawing or modifying the petition.  

Interested parties and citizens have an opportunity to be heard and may obtain further information 
on the proposed changes from the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Department Office, Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Government Center, 600 East Fourth Street, 704-336-2205. www.rezoning.org  

To file a written petition of protest which if valid will invoke the 3/4 majority vote rule (General 
Statute 160A-385) the petition must be filed with the City Clerk no later than the close of business 
on Wednesday, April 14, 2010. 



  Attachment 7 

1 of 1 

  AGENDA 
CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG PLANNING COMMISSION 

ZONING COMMITTEE WORK SESSION 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center, Rm 280 

March 24, 2010 
4:30 P.M. 

 
 

 1. Petition No. 2009-074 by Sycamore I, LLC for a change in zoning of approximately 4.71 
acres located along West 6th Street and North Sycamore Street from UR-2 and UR-3 to 
UMUD(CD) with five year vested rights. 

 

 2. Discussion of City Council’s policy on corrective rezonings. 
 

 3. Petition No. 2010-004 by Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission for a change in 
zoning of approximately 24.55 acres located on the west side of Sarah Drive, south of West 
Cama Street and on both sides of Orchard Circle from R-22MF to R-8. 
 

 4. Petition No. 2010-005 by Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission for a change in 
zoning of approximately 7.95 acres located on the west side of China Grove Church Road, the 
south side of Ervin Lane, both sides of Dendy Lane and both sides of Packard Street from         
R-17MF to R-8. 

 

 5. Petition No. 2010-019 by Betty S. Triece by Pamela Triece Rhynes, POA for a change in 
zoning of approximately 0.60 acres located on the east side of Eastway Drive near the 
intersection of Weldon Avenue and Citiside Drive from R-22MF to O-2. 
 

 6. Petition No. 2010-020 by Duke Energy Corporation for a change in zoning of approximately 
1.32 acres located on the north side of Pineville-Matthews Road between Carmel Executive Park 
and Bannington Road from R-3 to O-1(CD). 

 

 7. Petition No. 2010-026 by Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission for the adoption 
of a text amendment to the City of Charlotte Zoning Ordinance to add Special Event off street 
parking or non-construction staging as a principal use allowed with prescribed conditions in the 
UMUD Zoning District. 
  

 8. Petition No. 2010-029 by James Small for a UMUD-O site plan amendment of approximately 
0.54 acres located on the northern corner at the intersection of South Caldwell and East 3rd 
Street.  
 

 



1 
 

Charlotte-Mecklenburg Planning Commission             
Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
CMGC – Uptown Conference Room 
February 16, 2010 – 5:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present:  Yolanda Johnson (Chairperson), Eric Locher (Vice-Chairperson), Claire 
Green Fallon, Steve Firestone, Greg Phipps, and Andrew Zoutewelle 
 
Commissioners Absent:  Nina Lipton 
 
Planning Staff Present:  Sonda Kennedy, Kent Main, and Melony McCullough 
 
Other City Staff Present:  Daniel Gallagher (CDOT) and John Short (Neighborhood and Business 
Services)  
 
Call to Order 
Chairperson Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. 
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Locher and seconded by Commissioner Zoutewelle to 
approve the January 19, 2010 meeting minutes.  The vote was 6-0 to approve the minutes. 
 
North Tryon Area Plan Status 
 
Mr. Kent Main (Planning Staff) gave a brief update of the North Tryon Area planning process, 
stated that the plan does not include any corrective rezonings, and shared the plan adoption 
schedule.  The community meeting to receive public input on the draft plan was held on February 2, 
2010.   
 
Mr. Main noted that some of the rail crossings in the area will be closed.  Commissioner Locher 
asked if any new overpasses will be constructed.  Mr. Main responded that there are no plans for 
any new overpasses.  
 
Commissioner Phipps shared highlights from the February 2, 2010 community meeting.  He noted 
that there were approximately 31 citizens in attendance and that community response was generally 
positive.   
 
Chairperson Johnson opened the floor for public comments.  She recognized that although several 
citizens were present, none signed up to speak.  Mr. Korey Jeter, owner of JSP Global, LLC asked if 
funds are available for public or private projects to jumpstart redevelopment activity in the area.  
Mr. John Short (Neighborhood and Business Services) replied that there are no programs in place 
and that any proposals to the City’s Economic Development Division would be reviewed 
individually.  He also shared information about some of the City’s existing business assistance 
programs such as the façade and infrastructure grant programs.  Mr. Short noted his availability to 
provide additional information about the City’s programs after the meeting.  
 

                APPROVED 
               03/16/2010 

zduhaney
Text Box
Attachment 8



2 
 

Commissioner Fallon asked about the boarded up houses in the plan area.  Mr. Main responded that 
the Tryon Hills development has been purchased.  Tony Kuhm’s, Vision Ventures, firm manages 
the property for the entity that owns Tryon Hills.  Mr. Kuhm said he is not sure what will happen 
with the property at this time.   
 
Ms. Daisy Davis, a homeowner near Graham Street, asked how her community may be impacted by 
any projects proposed for the area.  Mr. Main explained that because of her property’s location, 
impact would be minimal.  However, some of the transportation improvements planned for the area 
may cause area residents to experience minor inconveniences.  
 
Mr. Main explained the next steps in the plan adoption process. 
  
Area Plan Status and Meeting Report 
 
Center City 2020 Vision Plan 
Chairperson Johnson stated that an update was presented at the full Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Catawba Area Plan  
Commissioner Firestone stated that he will have an update next month. 
  
Elizabeth Area Plan  
Commissioner Zoutewelle said the Café L’and Use Exercise at the February meeting was well 
received by the Citizen’s Advisory Group and could be used as a model in other area planning 
processes.  
 
North Tryon Area Plan  
Commissioner Phipps gave an update on the North Tryon Area Plan meeting that was held on 
February 2nd at Hope Haven.   
  
Steele Creek Area Plan  
Commissioner Locher stated that the citizens are active and very interested in the project.  He 
stated that the expansion of water and sewer service will transform the area.  Commissioner Fallon 
mentioned that Keith MacVean shared information at a City Council meeting about a development 
planned at Lake Wylie.   
 
University Research Park 
None 
 
Independence Boulevard Area Plan 
An update may be given at the next full Planning Commission meeting.  Ms. McCullough stated 
that the task force is still meeting. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 



  Attachment 9 

 
 
Charlotte Historic District Commission Update   March 25, 2010  
 
 
At their March 10, 2010 meeting, the Charlotte Historic District Commission made the 
following rulings on Applications for Certificates of Appropriateness. 

 
 
 

A. 607 Mt Vernon Avenue, Dilworth Local Historic District Deferred to Design Review  
 Painting of Brick House     Committee 
   
 
B. 928 East Park Avenue, Dilworth Local Historic District Deferred for Final Design  
 New Construction – Single Family House   Development 
   
 
C. 1142 Berkeley Avenue, Dilworth Local Historic District Denied 
 Replacement of Slate Roof 
   
 
D. 618 N Graham St, Fourth Ward Local Historic District Denied, Staff to Approve 
 Installation of Parking Bollards    Redesign 
  
 
E. 601 East Kingston Avenue, Dilworth Local Historic District Approved 
 Partial Screening of Front Porch 
   
  
 
Proposed Wilmore Local Historic Survey & Research Report Endorsed by the Historic District 
Commission  
 
At the March 10th HDC meeting, the Commission voted unanimously to endorse the Survey & 
Research Report on the Proposed Wilmore Local Historic District. After this vote, the report was 
sent to the State Historic Preservation Office for review and comment. The comments of that office 
are due back to the City by April 12th, and will be distributed to the City Council and to all 
interested parties as soon as they are received.  The joint City Council/Planning Commission Zoning 
Committee Public Hearing on the designation of Wilmore as a Local Historic District is set as part of 
the April 19th Zoning Hearing.  



zduhaney
Text Box
 Attachment 10


















































































